
 
 

Shelton City Council 

Meeting Agenda 

July 5, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 

Civic Center 

 

 

A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 

• Roll Call 

• Late Changes to the Agenda 
 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered APA000624 through APA000695 in the total amount of $173,539.98 

2.  Vouchers numbered 107441 through 107445 in the total amount of $48,889.21 

3.  Vouchers numbered APA000696 through APA000735 in the total amount of $52,527.42 

4.  Minutes from Study Session of May 24, 2022 

 
D.  Presentations 
     1.  Software Updates 

• EnerGov – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 

• NeoGov – Presented by Senior HR Analyst LeAndra Sharp 

• Website – Presented by Communications & Government Relations Specialist Mary Ricker 
 
E.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
      The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time. To make comments in person, please 
        sign in on the public comment sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please 
        list the agenda item number on the list.  To comment virtually using Zoom, please use the “Raise Hand” feature to alert the City Clerk. 
        If you have joined Zoom on your telephone, dial *9 to use the “Raise Hand” feature.  City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter 
        into a dialogue during public comment. If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an    
        appropriate time. 
 

F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
1.  Public Hearing Resolution No. 1237-0522 6-Year TIP – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
2.  Resolution No. 1239-0522 Deeming TMG Sole Source – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
3.  Resolution No. 1238-0522 Fee Schedule Update – Presented by Interim Finance Director Teri Schnitzer 
      

G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
1.  Ordinance No. 1989-0522 2022 Budget Supplemental – Presented by Interim Finance Director Teri 
     Schnitzer 

           
H.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
I.  New Items for Discussion 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – July 19, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 



  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: masonwebtv.com 
The public can provide comments virtually by: 

Email:  donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting)  
Telephone: (360) 432-5103 (before 5:00pm the day of the meeting) 

Join the Zoom meeting by clicking on the link posted on the City Council’s webpage 
 

Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

mailto:donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 6/27/2022 
 

 
2022 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 

Tues. 7/12 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 

• 2023 Legislative Priorities 

• Park Funding Strategies 

Packet Items Due: 
7/8 @ noon 

Tues. 7/19 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

• May Financial Status Report 
Business Agenda 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1990-0522 
Amending SMC 17.12 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1987-0422 
Amending SMC Ch. 20.47.010 Related to 
Camping on Private Property 

• Resolution No. 1240-0622 Cota Street 
Parking Lot Project Award 

Action Agenda 

• Resolution No. 1238-0522 Fee Schedule 
Update 

• Resolution No. 1237-0522 6 Year TIP 

• Resolution No. 1239-0522 TMG Sole Source 
for ProMinent Fluid Control, Inc. Products 
and Systems 

Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
7/8 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 7/26 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
7/22 @ noon 

Tues. 8/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1990-0522 Amending SMC 
17.12 

• Ordinance No. 1987-0422 Amending SMC 
Ch. 20.47.010 Related to Camping on 
Private Property 

• Resolution No. 1240-0622 Cota Street 
Parking Lot Project Award 

Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
7/22 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 8/9 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due:  
8/5 @ noon 



 

Updated 6/27/2022 
 

Tues. 8/16 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

• June Financial Status Report 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:   
8/5 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 8/23 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
8/19 @ noon 

Tues. 9/6 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 

• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
Business Agenda 

•  
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
8/26 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/13 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due: 
9/9 @ noon 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 

• More Standing Committees by the Council  

• Water and Sewer Fee Schedule Revisions (Ordinance removing rates from SMC) 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1968-0321 Water Comp Plan Adoption        









































































 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Study Session Special Meeting Minutes 

May 24, 2022 – 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center & Virtual Platform 

 

City Council - Study Session 
May 24, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes 
Civic Center and Virtual Platform Page 1 of 1 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  

Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Eric Onisko City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Joe Schmit City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad City Engineer Ken Gill 
Miguel Gutierrez   
Kathy McDowell 
Deidre Peterson   
Sharon Schirman  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
Roll Call: City Clerk Nault – All present 
 
Mayor Onisko requested a 30 second moment of silence to acknowledge the loss of students and teachers 
at Robb Elementary School in Texas that occurred today due to a mass shooting. 
 
STUDY AGENDA 
1. Stormwater Management Plan – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill and Mason Conservation District 

Special Programs Manager Barbara Adkins 
  

Mason Conservation District Special Program Manager Adkins provided an overview of the City’s 
Stormwater Management Public Education and Outreach Program. Discussion followed. 

 
2. Ordinance No. 1987-0422 Ch. 20.47.040 Related to Camping on Private Property – Presented by City 

Manager Jeff Niten 
 
 City Manager Niten reviewed an ordinance relating to overnight camping on private property that is not 

specifically designated for camping and creates a nuisance. Discussion followed. 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

• Legislative priorities 

• Live vs Zoom Study Sessions 
 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Onisko adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 

 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Eric Onisko     City Clerk Donna Nault  









Intro to NEOGOV-Onboarding Platform

Presented by LeAndra Sharp



helps employees hit the 

ground running with a 

self-service portal

Benefits for the City and New Employees:

• Web-based – New hire can access forms anywhere providing they have internet access

• New Hire Self-Service Portal – Supports candidate onboarding process 

• Online Forms – Reduce paper waste

• Proven Times Savings – Speeds up the tedious HR process

• Assign new hires checklist of tasks – Sends reminders of task to complete

• Ensures timely completion of compliance forms through electronic signature verification

• Contributes to a positive work culture and employee satisfaction to lower turnover



User Experience-Demo



New City Website

City Manager’s Office

Current WebsiteNew Website



New City Website

City Clerk – Public Records

New Website Current Website



New City Website

Joining a Hybrid Meeting

Current Website

New Website



General

Accessibility Widget

Optimized for Mobile



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date: 06/23/22 
Brief Date:       07/05/22 
Action Date:  07/19/22 

 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Resolution No. 1237-0522  
  6-Year TIP 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1237-0522 with    
  Spreadsheet Attachment 
- Informational Map 
- Public Hearing Notice 
- TIP Definition Codes   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Per RCW 35.77.010, the purpose of the 6-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) is, “…to assure that 
each city and town shall perpetually have available advanced plans looking to the future for not less than six 
years as a guide in carrying out a coordinated transportation program”. 
 
The TIP is used by several state and federal agencies and serves multiple purposes. It is mainly for local 
agencies to prioritize their transportation projects anticipated to be done during the next six years, as well as for 
the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to know what projects are anticipated, to list 
those projects that have federal and/or state funding secured, to identify those projects that are anticipating 
state or federal funding that is not yet secured, and to allow WSDOT to create a list of projects for the statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Federally funded projects must be incorporated into the STIP 
before money will be disbursed to a local agency. Washington State Law requires the annual adoption of the 6-
Year TIP take place after a public hearing, and to submit the adopted 6-year TIP to WSDOT within 30 days of 
its passage. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
This is a requirement of Washington State. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Public Notice for the Public Hearing was published in the Shelton Mason County Journal, as required by 
Washington state law. Further information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1237-0522 on the July 19, 2022 Action Agenda for further 
consideration”. 



Resolution No 1237-0522 

RESOLUTION NO.  1237-0522 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON ADOPTING THE COMPREHENSIVE SIX (6) 
YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE CITY OF SHELTON FOR THE YEARS 2023 

THROUGH 2028. 
 

 
WHEREAS, a study has been completed by the City Engineering Department and approved by the City 
Manager in which a Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement Program has been 
prepared for the six (6) year period 2023 through 2028, that shows the street locations, improvements 
that are to be made within the six (6) year period, and the estimated cost of each improvement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Shelton held a public hearing on the Comprehensive Six (6) 
Year Transportation Improvement Program at 6:00 pm on the 5st day of July 2022 in an open public 
meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment received was considered and incorporated, if applicable, into the Plan 
prepared by the City of Shelton relative to the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation Improvement 
Program for the City of Shelton. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as follows: 
 

1. That the attached table be adopted as the Comprehensive Six (6) Year Transportation 
Improvement Program for the City of Shelton. 

2. That the table attached hereto is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
Resolution. 

3. That this adoption of a Transportation Improvement Program is for the purpose of complying 
with the provisions of RCW 35.77, 36.81, 46.68, and 47.26 relating to the planning and financing 
of street and highway programs. 

 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 19th day of July 2022. 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko  
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk Nault  
 

 



Shelton
Mason County #23
City No. 1165  MPO/RTPO: NON/PEN

Transportation Improvement Program - All Years/All Phase
From 2023-2028

Hearing: July 5, 2022   
      Adoption Date: July 19, 2022

Resolution No. 1238-0522 
Amend Date:    

1 Western Gateway - Railroad Avenue 5640 7th Street
Pacific Court       
(City Limits)

Roadway improvements including pavement and water main 
replacement, storm drainage, illumination, sidewalk and ADA access S $4,354,580 $3,276,733 14 06 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

2 Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / Shelton Springs Road 5432 Roundabout at Wallace-Kneeland and Shelton Springs P $3,022,326 $3,022,326 16 12 32 CE NO

3 Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / N. 13th Intersection 5435 Roundabout at Wallace-Kneeland and North 13th Street P $2,736,766 $2,736,766 16 12 32 W S P G C T O CE YES

4 Western Gateway - 7th Street 5426 Alder Street Cota Street
Roadway improvements including paving, sidewalks and ADA access, 
intersection improvements including signalization P $750,000 $75,000 17 05 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

5 North Shelton Interchange Upgrade SR101
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd
Roadway improvements including widening, channelization and 
intersection improvement P $3,200,000 $0 12 05 07 10 12 W S P G C T O EIS NO

6 Brockdale Road 5435
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd
N City Limits

Roadway improvements including pavement stabilization, storm 
drainage, landscaping, sidewalk and ADA access P $1,500,000 $1,500,000 17 03 05 06 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

7 Western Gateway Phase C - West Downtown 7th to 12th Alder to Cota
Roadway improvements including paving, illumination, sidewalks and 
ADA access P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 14 06 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

8 Olympic Highway North 5465 "K" Street
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd
Roadway improvements including pavement grinding and overlay P $1,800,000 $1,800,000 14 03 07 W S P G C T O CE NO

9 Access Shelton Phase VI, Olympic Highway North 5465 "C" Street "K" Street
Roadway improvements including pavement grinding, overlay, 
illumination, sidewalk and ADA access upgrades P $4,000,000 $4,000,000 14 03 06 07 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

10 Railroad Avenue 5640 1st Street 7th Street
Roadway improvements including pavement  replacement,  ADA access 
upgrades and intersection improvements P $4,000,000 $400,000 14 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

11 Cota Street Front Street 7th Street
Roadway improvements including pavement, road base, storm drainage, 
illumination, channelization, landscaping, sidewalk and ADA access P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 16 03 05 06 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

12 Turner Avenue 5434 1st Street Angleside Road
Roadway improvements including paving, channelization, storm drainage, 
illumination & pedestrian walkway P $1,000,000 $1,000,000 17 06 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

13 Park Street 1st Street 7th Street
Roadway improvements including storm drainage, sidewalk and ADA 
access P $2,000,000 $2,000,000 17 06 12 W S P G C T O CE NO

14 Angleside Road 5426 / 7th Street Cota Street Turner Avenue
Guardrail, pedestrian walkway, intersection reconstruction, ROW 
acquisition, pavement, road base, storm drainage, illumination P $3,000,000 $3,000,000 17 03 06 07 12 32 W S P G C T O CE YES

15 Railroad Avenue 5640 City Limits
Hwy 101             

Park & Ride
Roadway improvements including overlay, sidewalk and ADA access P $2,000,000 $0 14 05 06 07 10 32 W S P G C T O CE NO

0 Local Roads Safety Plan Improvements/ADA Transition Plan City Wide Upgrade ADA facilites on public streets and parks P $30,000 $30,000 00 32 CE NO

0 Transportation/Signage Improvement Plan City Wide Update TIF and signage to current standards P $250,000 $250,000 00 12 CE NO

0 Pavement Maintenance Program-Brockdale Road 
Wallace-

Kneeland Blvd
Batstone Cutoff 

Road
 Overlay S TBD 

$278,000 $37,530 00 07 CE NO

0 Guardrail Replacement City Wide Upgrade guardrails to current standards P $500,000 $500,000 00 12 CE NO

0 Pedestrian Crossing Improvements Three locations 
Rapid Flashing Beacons (7th and Franklin, 9th and RR Ave, Shelton Springs 
Road and Huff and Puff Trail) S TBD 

$890,292 $120,189 00 32 CE NO

0 Former Simpson RR Multiuse Path Hwy 101 Kneeland Park 12' wide asphalt path with RRFB at RR Ave and 11th P $2,000,000 $100,000 00 32 CE NO

$41,311,964 $27,848,971

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Name N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(0

1)

Re
lo

ca
tio

n 
(0

2)

Re
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
(0

3)

M
aj

or
 W

id
en

in
g 

(0
4)

Br
id

ge
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

(1
0)

Sa
fe

ty
 (1

2)

W
at

er

Se
w

er

Po
w

er

G
as

M
in

or
 B

rid
ge

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
(1

1)

R/
W

 N
ee

de
d?

  
(A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
D

at
e)

Ca
bl

e 
TV

Te
le

ph
on

e

O
th

er

Utilities

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l (
13

)

Description

Project Limits

Be
gi

nn
in

g

En
d

Br
id

ge
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

09
)

N
ew

 B
rid

ge
 (0

8)

Re
su

rf
ac

in
g 

(0
7)

O
th

er
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 (0
6)

M
in

or
 W

id
en

in
g 

(0
5)

Improvement Type

Fu
nc

tio
na

l C
la

ss

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
at

us

Fe
de

ra
l A

id
 N

um
be

r

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

t

Es
tim

at
ed

 C
ity

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n

O
th

er

Report Dated:  06/23/2022
1 TIP 2023-2028



Shelton
Mason County #23
City No. 1165  MPO/RTPO: NON/PEN

Transportation Improvement Program - All Years/All Phase
From 2023-2028

Hearing: July 5, 2022   
      Adoption Date: July 19, 2022

Resolution No. 1238-0522 
Amend Date:    

1 Western Gateway - Railroad Avenue 5640

2 Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / Shelton Springs Road 5432

3 Wallace-Kneeland Blvd 5439 / N. 13th Intersection 5435 

4 Western Gateway - 7th Street 5426

5 North Shelton Interchange Upgrade

6 Brockdale Road 5435

7 Western Gateway Phase C - West Downtown

8 Olympic Highway North 5465

9 Access Shelton Phase VI, Olympic Highway North 5465

10 Railroad Avenue 5640

11 Cota Street

12 Turner Avenue 5434

13 Park Street

14 Angleside Road 5426 / 7th Street

15 Railroad Avenue 5640

0 Local Roads Safety Plan Improvements/ADA Transition Plan 

0 Transportation/Signage Improvement Plan

0 Pavement Maintenance Program-Brockdale Road 

0 Guardrail Replacement

0 Pedestrian Crossing Improvements

0 Former Simpson RR Multiuse Path 

Pr
io

rit
y 

N
um

be
r

Project Name St
ar

t D
at

e

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ha

se
 C

os
t

O
ut

si
de

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

O
ut

si
de

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(%

)

St
ar

t D
at

e

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ha

se
 C

os
t

O
ut

si
de

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

O
ut

si
de

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(%

)

St
ar

t D
at

e

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ha

se
 C

os
t

O
ut

si
de

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ou

rc
e

O
ut

si
de

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(%

)

2020 $399,446 2022 $4,126,134 TIB 23% $3,126 $1,000

2024 $202,166 2024 $2,820,160 $200 $2,820

2025 $202,166 2026 $65,000 2027 $2,469,600 $202 $65 $2,469

2026 $112,500 2027 $637,500 $112 $638

2026 $480,000 2027 $2,720,000 $480 $2,720

2027 $30,000 2028 $278,000

2028 $300,000 2029 $1,700,000

2029 $270,000 2030 $1,530,000

2030 $600,000 2030 $3,400,000

2031 $600,000 2031 $3,400,000

2032 $300,000 2032 $1,700,000

2033 $150,000 2033 $850,000

2034 $300,000 2034 $1,700,000

2035 $450,000 2035 $2,550,000

2036 $300,000 2036 $1,700,000

2022 $30,000 2022 $30

2023 $250,000 $42 $42 $42 $42 $42 $42

2022 $278,000 STBG-U 86.5% $278 $400 $400 $400 $400 $400

2022 $500,000 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83

2022 $890,292 $148 $148 $148 $148 $148 $148

2025 $461,000 2026 $1,539,000 WSDOT PB 100.0%

Project Phase
Preliminary Engineering (Planning) Right-of Way (Equip Purchase) Construction

Expenditure Schedule  ($1,000)

Ye
ar

 1
 (2

02
3)

Ye
ar

 2
 (2

02
4)

Ye
ar

 3
 (2

02
5)

Ye
ar

 4
 (2

02
6)

Ye
ar

 5
 (2

02
7)

Ye
ar

 6
 (2

02
8)

Report Dated:  06/23/2022
2 TIP 2023-2028





 
 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

525 WEST COTA STREET 

SHELTON, WASHINGTON 

(360) 426-4491 

 

 

NOTICE OF 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, is 

declaring its intention to hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, July 5, 2022, at 6:00 p.m., at the 

Shelton Civic Center to hear testimony regarding the proposed Six (6) Year Transportation 

Improvement Program for the City of Shelton.  All persons who desire to give testimony 

regarding the proposed program should appear before the Council and present their testimony at 

said hearing to be held at the Shelton Civic Center, 525 West Cota Street.  Copies of the 

proposed plan are available from the Public Works Department. 

 

Interested persons may appear and present their testimony at the hearing, or written comments 

may be submitted to the City Clerk, City of Shelton, 525 W. Cota Street, Shelton, WA 98584 or 

emailed to donna.nault@sheltonwa.gov, no later than 5:00 p.m., on Tuesday, July 5, 2022. 

 

 



Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
Definition of Information Codes 

 
The following descriptive codes are used in the TIP program provided by WSDOT.  The following is a list of the 
meaning of various codes used in the TIP table. 
 
Functional Classification 

 Urban (Over 5000 population) 
 00 – No Classification 
 11 – Interstate 
 12 – Freeways & Expressways 
 14 – Other Principal Arterials 
 16 – Minor Arterial 
 17 – Collector 
 19 – Local Access 
 
 
Improvement Type Codes 

 01 – New Construction on New Alignment  08 – New Bridge Construction 
 02 – Relocation 09 – Bridge Replacement  
 03 – Reconstruction  10 – Bridge Rehabilitation 
 04 – Major Widening  11 – Minor Bridge Rehabilitation 
 05 – Minor Widening  12 – Safety/ Traffic Operation/TSM 
 06 – Other Enhancements  13 – Environmentally Related 
 07 – Resurfacing  32 – Non Motor Vehicle Project 

 
 

Funding Status 

S - Project is selected by the appropriate selection body and funding has been secured by the lead agency. 
P - Project is subject to selection by an agency other than the lead and is listed for planning purposes. (Funding 
has not been determined.) 
 
 
Utility Codes 

 W – Water 
 S – Sewer (other than agency-owned) 
 P – Power 
 G – Gas  
 C – Cable TV   
 T – Telephone      
 O – Other      
 
 
Environmental Data Type 

 EIS – Environmental Impact Statement 
 EA – Environmental Assessment 
 CE – Categorical Exclusion  

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 

Touch Date: 06/01/22 
Brief Date:       07/05/22 
Action Date:  07/19/22 
 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By:  Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
TMG Sole Source for ProMinent 

Fluid Controls, Inc. 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
   -Res 1239-0522  
   -Sole Source Letter from ProMinent 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. is a manufacturer of equipment, parts, and components largely used for 
municipal water and wastewater treatment. Both the main Wastewater Treatment Plant and the MBR at the 
satellite Water Reclamation Plant are equipped with pumps, parts, and components manufactured by 
ProMinent that are vital to the wastewater treatment process.  
 
ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. has deemed TMG Services, located in Tacoma, as the exclusive municipal 
sales and service representative for the State of Washington and is the only authorized dealer to sell directly 
to local, county, and state governments, as shown in the attached Sole Source Letter provided by ProMinent 
Fluid Controls, Inc. 
 
There are often times equipment needs to be serviced, repaired, or replaced due to its continual, repetitive 
use; the annual budget is prepared with this in mind in order to allow for the expenditures as the need arises. 
Although the expenses are budgeted, many of the purchase needs exceed the dollar threshold governed by 
the State that requires staff to seek quotes for purchases over $7,500 or complete the formal bidding process 
for those over $15,000, even though it is known that TMG Services is the only distributor and service provider 
for ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. Adopting Resolution No. 1239-0522 will formally deem TMG Services as 
the sole source for such purchases and service, and allow staff to quickly obtain the needed equipment or 
services without having to go through the lengthy bidding process.  
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Purchases and service of equipment and parts is accounted for in the Maintenance and Repair lines of the 
Sewer Fund in the annual budget. Any equipment or service needs that exceed the budgeted amount will be 
brought to Council for approval. 

 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
   Information for this can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
   Staff recommends: “I move to place Resolution No. 1239-0522 on the July 19, 2022 Action 
   Agenda for further consideration”. 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO.  1239-0522 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, DECLARING THE PURCHASE OF PROMINENT 
FLUID CONTROLS, INC. EQUIPMENT, PARTS, COMPONENTS, AND SERVICE TO BE CLEARLY AND 

LEGITIMATELY LIMITED TO A SOLE SOURCE THROUGH TMG SERVICES AND WAIVING COMPETITIVE 
BIDDING REQUIREMENTS FOR SUCH PURCHASES AND SERVICE NEEDS. 

 
 
WHEREAS, ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. is a manufacturer of equipment, parts, and components 
largely used for municipal water and wastewater treatment; and  
 
WHEREAS, both the Main Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Satellite Water Reclamation Plant are 
equipped with pumps, parts, and components manufactured by ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. that are 
vital to the wastewater treatment process; and  
 
WHEREAS, ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. has deemed TMG Services, located in Tacoma, as the exclusive 
municipal sales representative for the State of Washington and is the only authorized dealer to sell 
directly to local, county, and state governments; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as follows: 
 
1. The City Council declares that purchase of ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. equipment, parts, 

components, and service is clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply because 
ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. is the only manufacturer for the desired equipment, and they have 
deemed TMG Services as the exclusive municipal sales representative and authorized dealer for the 
State of Washington. 
 

2. Under RCW 39.04.280, the City Council waives competitive bidding requirements for the sole source 
purchases and service of ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. equipment, parts, and components for the 
City of Shelton. 
 

3. The City Manager is authorized to execute purchase orders with TMG Services to acquire and service 
ProMinent Fluid Controls, Inc. equipment, parts, and components as necessary for the repair and 
upkeep of the Main Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Satellite Water Reclamation Plant. 

 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 19th day of July 2022. 
 
                                                                           
                                                   
   
 ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Onisko   
 
AUTHENTICATED BY: 
  
____________________________      
City Clerk Nault 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F3) 

Touch Date:   06/24/2022        
Brief Date:      0705/2022 
Action Date:   07/19/2022 

 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By: Teri Schnitzer 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
2022 Master Fee Schedule 
Update #2 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
     - Resolution No. 1238-0522 
    - Exhibit A - with track changes  
    - Exhibit B - Traffic Impact Fee     

                      Schedule 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
06/24/2022 

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk 06/24/2022 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
06/24/2022 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

This Resolution would supersede Resolution 1225-1221 that was adopted by City Council on February 15, 
2022 due to necessary updates needed to the City’s 2022 Master Fee Schedule.  The City annually 
updates fees to incorporate changes in the cost to provide certain City services, update services provided 
for a fee/charge, and eliminate fees for services that are no longer relevant. 
 
Fees and Charges for services such as animal licensing, parks and recreation, code enforcement, building 
and development, and permitting the general guiding principle is that these fees/charges may be set at a 
level that recovers all the direct and indirect costs associated with the activity, including administrative 
overhead.   
 
Utility rates, Utility system charges, and Utility service fees should be set to recover the cost of operating 
the utility systems, in addition to charging for replacing equipment and adding or expanding facilities to 
meet regulations, future service demands, and setting aside for unforeseen events such as natural 
disasters.  Revenues for fees and charges must meet the expenses of the system, in addition to setting 
aside reserves, to keep the utility operating in a fiscally responsible manner.  Utility rates should also 
incorporate the utility’s portion of indirect costs. 
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move that we forward Resolution No. 1238-0522 to the action agenda of the July 19th Council meeting 
for further consideration.” 



RESOLUTION NO.  1238-0522 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON  

UPDATING AND ESTABLISHING THE CITY’S MASTER FEE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2022 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is the general policy of the City to establish fees that are reflective of the cost of services 

provided by the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is best practice for the City’s Master Fee Schedule be updated annually to reflect changes 

in the cost for certain City services or when changes to the fee schedule are necessary. 

 

WHEREAS, the City’s Master Fee Schedule approved through Resolution 1225-1221 on February 15th, 

2022 is in need of an update due to a change in City practice since that date; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 

follows: 

 

Section 1.  Public Interest.  The City Council for the City of Shelton, Washington finds that it is in the 

public interest to amend and supersede the previously adopted Master Fee Schedule to address costs 

associated with providing services. 

 

Section 2.  Supersede previous Resolutions.  This resolution inclusive of Exhibit A and B attached hereto 

shall supersede in its entirety Resolution 1225-1221 approved by the Shelton City Council and set the City’s 

2022 Master Fee Schedule. 

 

Section 3.  Adjustments.  The Shelton City Council amends the Master Fee Schedule to include Exhibit A 

and B 

 

Section 4.  Effective date.  This resolution establishes updated fees in the Master Fee Schedule as provided 

in Exhibit A and B to be in effect on August 1, 2022. 

 

INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 19th day of July 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 ______________________________________ 

ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Onisko 

 

   

___________________________  

City Clerk Nault    

     



 
 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

City of Shelton  

525 Cota Street 

Shelton, Washington 98584 

Master Fee Schedule 

RESOLUTION 1225-1221 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

General Government………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 2 

Animal Shelter……………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 3 

Civic Center………………………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 3 

Code Enforcement……………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 4 

Parks and Recreation…………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 4 

Police Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 4 

Community Development…………………………………………………………………………………………....... pg. 5 

Planning………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 5 

Building……………………………………………………………………..………………………………… pg. 6 

Fire…………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 12 

Public Works………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 13 

Stormwater……………………..………………………………………………………………………….pg. 14 

Sanitary Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 15 

Reclaimed Water……………………………………………………………………………….………. pg. 16 

Water……………………………………………………………………………………………….……….. pg. 17 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

2 
 

Type of Permit        Fee 

General Government           

Annual Report $10.00 

Documents provided at Public Hearings 
Audio Reproduction (when requested within 
one year of hearing).  *Other than Police 

$0.00 (within one year) 
$10.00 (requested after one year of hearing 

date) 

Video Reproduction * Other than Police $10.00 

Copies  $0.15 per page 

Scanned copies to electronic format $0.10 per page 

Files or attachments for electronic delivery $0.05 per four (4) attachments 

Gigabyte of electronic records for 
transmission 

$0.10 per gigabyte 

Storage media, container, envelope, postage 
and delivery charge 

Actual Cost 

R.C.W. 42.56.120 (2) (b) (c) and (e)  

New and renewal of Business License $50.00 

Sexually Oriented Business License $100.00 

Sexually Oriented Manager or Entertainer $50.00 

Taxi Operator License (per operator) $40.00 

Taxi Vehicle License (per vehicle) $40.00 

Returned Check charge $40.00 

VISA/MC chargeback $35.00 

Special Event Permit $35.00 (An additional $25.00 is due for 
applications received 25 business days or less 

prior to the event).  

City Special Event services (barricades, 
garbage, etc.) 

$25.00 (per event, per service) 

Displays on City message boards $30.00 

 

Map Reproduction Color 36 x 48 $18.00 
Color 24 x 36 $12.00 

Special Order 36 x 48 $30.00 
Special Order 24 x 36 $20.00 

Black Line $1.00 (Per square foot) 

 



 
 

3 
 

Animal Shelter 

Adoption Fee $100200.00  

Animal License (Yearly) 

Animal License (Microchipped Pet Lifetime) 

Spayed or Neutered (Yearly) 

Service Dogs (Yearly) 

Senior citizen 65 yrs. and older (Yearly) 

$30.00 

$100.00 

$25.00 

No fee 

$15.00 

Surrender of Dog - City residents only $40.00 

Animal Impound (City residents) First impoundment $50.00 
Second impoundment $75.00 

Third and subsequent impoundment $150.00 
All impound fees shall also be charged unpaid 

animal license fees.  

Boarding fee (over 48 hours) $15.00 per/day ($30.00 per/day after 48 
hours) 

Lost license or (transfer of license) $5.00($10.00) 

Non-resident animal impound fee First impoundment $150.00 
Second impoundment $200.00 

Third and subsequent impoundment $250.00 

 

Civic Center Rental  

Damage Deposit $300.00 

Kitchen $50.00 

Black drapery $2.00 (per 10 foot section) 

Staging $10.00 (use of 1 – 4 sections) 

Equipment Rental TV Monitor $10.00 
Multimedia Projector $20.00 

Coffee Service $25.00 (per gallon) 

Meeting rooms $22.00 per hour for each 600 sq. ft. 

Main meeting room $75.00 per hour 

50% reduction in room rental for local government and non-profits during regular business 

hours 

 

 



 
 

4 
 

 

Code Enforcement 

Infraction Issued 
Fees including site visit(s), photos, file 
creation, documentation, etc.  Plus itemized 
fees to include attorney costs, additional 
tracked staff time and costs, title searches, 
service, court filing fees, which may be 
included in the city request for abatement 
cost reimbursement per R.C.W. 35.21.955 

$68.00 minimum 

 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks Master Plan $20.00 

Ballfields and Playfields (Callahan Park/Loop 
Field. 

Field Rental $12.00 per hour 
Softball Field preparation $20.00 each field 

City recreation programs Actual cost of program 

Refunds Before first class: %100 
Before second class: %80 

Before third class: %50 
After third class: No refunds 

Picnic Shelters $12.50 per hour.  Two hour minimum, plus 
applicable fees for garbage, labor, misc. 

Commercial Park (Use by individual, 
company, corporation, business or similar for 
the purposes of selling, distributing, or 
promotion.  

$25.00 per hour 

 

Police Department  

Fingerprints $15.00 

Video Reproduction $10.00 

Audio Reproduction $10.00 

Weapons Permit  $49.25 

Weapons Permit renewal  $32.00 

Weapons Permit renewal – late application $42.00 

Weapons Permit – replacement $10.00 

Weapons Dealer Permit $125.00 



 
 

5 
 

Excess Alarm fee $25.00 after three (3) false alarms 

 

Community Development – Planning 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

Address Assignment $100.00 

Annexation  $1,200.00 plus $40.00 per acre or fraction 
thereof.   

Appeal to the Hearing Examiner Individual - $1,000.00 
H.O.A. - $500.00 

Boundary Line Adjustment $315.00 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $2,600.00 

Comprehensive Plan document $35.00 

Conditional Use Permit/Special Use Permit $2,700.00 

SEPA $300.00 

EIS $1,400.00 plus consultant costs 

Fence $75.00 residential 
$180.00 commercial 

Forest Practices Application $350.00 

Plat/Binding Site Plan Preliminary:  $3,300.00 plus $40.00 per lot 
Extension: $200.00 

Final:  $500.00  
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00  

Planned Unit Development Preliminary:  $3,000.00 plus $25.00 per lot 
Extension:  $200.00 

Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00   

Parcel combination $320.00  

Pre-submittal conference $150.00 

RV/Tent Occupancy Application $45.00 

Short Plat $920.00 

Site Plan Review $1,200.00 



 
 

6 
 

Site Plan amendment $110.00 

Variance Permit $2,700.00 

Zone Change  $2,400.00 

Zoning Letter $45.00 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment $435.00 

Signs $50.00 when no building permit required 
$55.00 per square foot valuation with 

building permit 

Shoreline Specific applications  

Shoreline Management Program document $35.00 

Shoreline Statement of Exemption $170.00 

Substantial Development Permit $560.00 
Public Hearing Required: $2,300.00 

Shoreline Conditional Use Permit $2,300.00 

Shoreline Variance $2,300.00 

 

Community Development – Building 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

After Hours Inspections (Regular business 
hours 8am to 5pm Monday through Friday). 

$70.00 per hour (two hour minimum) 

Re-inspection fee $70.00 per hour (one hour minimum) 

Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Additional plan review required for plan 
changes. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Note:  For the building fees above, or the 
total; hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest. This cost shall 
include supervision, overhead, equipment, 
hourly wages and fringe benefits of the 
employees involved. 
Actual costs include administrative and 
overhead costs. 

 

  



 
 

7 
 

Building Valuation 

*NOTE: all footnotes of Building Valuation 
Data as published by ICC shall apply 

1) New construction, and remodels greater 
than 50%: of "R" occupancies   The City of 
Shelton will utilize the International Code 
Council’s “Building Valuation Data Table” on 
a two year lag as published in the August 
edition of the Building Safety Journal.  The 
square footage valuations from this table will 
be implemented on the first day of 
September following publication and remain 
in force through August of the following year. 
2) Private garages, storage buildings, green 
houses and similar structures shall be valued 
as Utility, Miscellaneous  
3) Remodels less than 50% shall be valued at 
50% of the table value from the ICC Building 
Valuation Data for occupancy specified. 

Bulkheads $20.00 per cubic foot 

Building Permit 

NOTE:  Washington State surcharge applies:  

$25.00 Commercial, $6.50 Residential. 

 

Valuation: 
$1.00 to $500.00: $25.00 

$501.00 to $2,000.00:  $25.00 and $3.00 per 
each additional $100 or fraction thereof and 

including $2,000 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00:  $70.00 and $14.00 

for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $25,000 

$25,000.00 to $50,000.00:  $390.00 and 
$10.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $50,000 
$50,001.00 to $100,000.00:  $640.00 and 

$7.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $100,000 

$100,001.00 to $500,000.00:  $1,000.00 and 
$6.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $500,000 
500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00:  $3,400.00 and 
$5.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $1,000,000 
$1,000,000 and up: $5,700 and $7.00 for 

each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof to 
and including $1,000,000  

 
       

Maximum Building Permit fee $50,000.00 



 
 

8 
 

Early Foundation Permit/Early start 
agreement (Early foundation permit for 
commercial/industrial building will be 
deducted from permit fee upon full 
submittal. 

25% of building permit fee 

Demolition permit $120.00 plus State surcharge 

Reroof – residential only     $115.00 

Reroof –commercial 

 per square valuation is used to determine 

valuation 

$275.00 per square   - 

Class A&B (hotmop/torchdown) 

$250.00 per square  - 

Composition( roll/3 tab) 

$325.00 per square  - 

Composition with plywood replacement 

$300.00 per square  -  Metal 

$275.00 per square  -  Shake 

$300.00 per square    -   Shingle 

Windows $25.00 first window, $7.00 for each 

additional window 

Reissuance of lost permit card $30.00 

Reissuance of plan package or expired permit 

in same code cycle 

$140.00 

Stock Plans 50% of the ICC fee 

Solid Fuel/Gas insert $140.00 

Hearing Examiner appeal $2,400.00 

Request for Reconsideration $500.00 

Investigation fee $70.00 per hour 

Mechanical Permit Each mechanical permit:  $25.00 
 
 
FURNACE: 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 



 
 

9 
 

appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h 
(29.3kW):  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW):  
$20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each floor 
furnace, including vent:  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
suspended heater, recessed wall heater on 
floor-mounted unit heater:  $16.00 
 
Appliance Vents: 
For the installation, relocation or 
replacement of each appliance vent and not 
included in an appliance permit:  $8.00 
 
Repairs or Additions: 
For the repair of, or addition to each heating 
appliance, refrigeration unit, cooling unit, 
absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, 
absorption or evaporative cooling system, 
including installation of controls regulated by 
the Mechanical Code:  $15.00 
 
Boilers, Compressors, and Absorption 
Systems: 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor to and including 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption 
system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 
kW):  $15.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over three horsepower 
(10.6 kW) to and including 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 
100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW):  $30.00 
 



 
 

10 
 

For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW) to and including 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW):  $40.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $60.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $100.00 
 
Air Handlers: 
For each air-handling unit to and including 
10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) (4719 
L/s), including ducts attached thereto:  
$12.00 
 
Note: This fee does not apply to an air-
handling unit, which is a portion of a factory- 
assembled appliance, cooling unit, 
evaporative cooler or absorption unit for 
which a permit is required elsewhere in the 
Mechanical Code for each air-handling unit 
over 10,000 cfm (4719 L/s):  $20.00 
 
Evaporative Coolers: 
For each evaporative cooler other than 
portable type:  $12.00 
 
Ventilation and Exhaust: 
For each ventilation fan connected to a single 
duct:  $8.00 
 
For each ventilation system which is not 
portion of any heating or air-conditioning 
system authorized by a permit:  $12.00 
 



 
 

11 
 

For the installation of each hood which is 
served by mechanical exhaust, including the 
ducts for such hood:  $12.00 
 
Incinerators:   
For the installation or relocation of each 
domestic-type incinerator:  $20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
commercial or industrial-type incinerator:  
$16.00 
 
Miscellaneous: 
For each appliance or piece of equipment 
regulated by the Mechanical Code but not 
classed in other appliance categories, or for 
which no other fee is listed in the table:  
$12.00 

Mobile/Manufactured Home set-up Individual Lot:  $472.00 
Park Set:  $165.00 

 

Mobile Home Title Eliminations $30.00 

Plan Review (All types other than 
Mechanical) 
*NOTE: Commercial kitchen based on project 
valuation of engineer's written estimate. 

65% of Permit fee 
Mechanical only:  25% of Permit fee 

Plumbing Permit Each permit:  $25.00 
 
NOTE: Unit Fee Schedule in addition to above 

 
For each plumbing fixture on one trap or a 
set of fixtures on one trap (including water, 
drainage piping, and backflow protection 
therefore):  $8.00 
 
For each building sewer and each trailer park 
sewer:  $16.00 
 
Rainwater systems per drain (inside building):  
$8.00 
 
For each cesspool where permitted:  $27.00 
 
For each private sewage disposal system:  



 
 

12 
 

$45.00 
 
For each water heater and/or vent:  $8.00 
 
For each industrial waste pretreatment 
interceptor including its trap and vent, except 
kitchen-type grease interceptors functioning 
as fixture traps:  $8.00 
 
For each installation, alteration or repair of 
water piping and/or water treating 
equipment, each:  $8.00 
 
For each repair or alteration of drainage or 
vent piping, each fixture:  $8.00 
 
For each lawn sprinkler system on any one 
meter including backflow protection devices 
therefore:  $8.00 
 
For each backflow protective device other 
than atmospheric type vacuum breakers: 

• 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller:  
$8.00 

• over 2 inch (51 mm) diameter:  
$16.00 

Atmospheric-type vacuum breakers: 

• 1 to 5:  $5.00 

• over 5, each:  $2.00 

Propane Tanks and Piping (above and below 
ground) 

$12.00 per tank 

Refund: 
 

No permit fee refund will be allowed once 
any work has begun on a project. In order to 
request a refund of a permit fee, the request 
shall be addressed to the Building Official in 
writing and shall be received at the City of 
Shelton finance department within 180 days 
of the date of issuance of the permit; any 
refund request received after 180 days of 
the date of permit issuance shall 
automatically be denied. At the discretion of 
the Building Official, refund requests may be 
approved or denied based on the status of a 
project. All approved refunds shall be limited 



 
 

13 
 

to 75% of the total permit fees paid. Refund 
requests shall only be considered for 
building, plumbing and mechanical permit 
fees. Refunds shall not include any plan 
review fees.  

 
Fifty percent (50%) of the permit fee paid 
when no work has been done under a permit 
issued.  No more than seventy-five percent 
(75%) of the plan review fee paid when an 
applicant for a permit for which a plan review 
fee has not been paid is withdrawn or 
canceled before any plan reviewing is done. 
The building official shall not authorize 
refunding of any fee paid except on written 
application filed by the original permittee no 
later than 180 days after the date of fee paid. 

 

Fire – Development Review 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Commercial Site Plans $390.00 

Subdivision or Planned Residential Development $328.00 

Pre-Application Conference $95.00 

Other Land Use Application $264.00 

 

Fire – Alarm Fees 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Fire Alarm System - Minor Alteration $100.00 

Fire Alarm Zoned System - One Zone $296.00 

Each Additional Zone $136.00 

Fire Alarm Addressable System - 1 to 20 Devices $296.00 

Each Additional Device $4.00 

 

Fire -– Suppression 



 
 

14 
 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Commercial Cooking Extinguishing System/Protection $252.00 

Fire Pumps and Private or Dedicated Fire Hydrant Systems $372.00 

Fire Hydrant - Witnessed Flow Test (1-4) Hydrants $100.00 

Fire Hydrant - Each Additional Hydrant $40.00 

Fire Sprinkler - Alteration to Existing System(s) (>4 heads) $200.00 

Fire Sprinkler - New System - NFPA 13 (2 inspections) $472.00 

NFPA 13 - Each Additional Riser $472.00 

Fire Sprinkler - New System - NFPA 13D (Single Family) $200.00 

Fire Sprinkler - New System - NFPA 13R (Per Building) $390.00 

Other Extinguishing Systems $372.00 

Standpipe System $200.00 

Underground Fire Sprinkler Mains (2 inspections) $252.00 

 

Fire -– Other 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Fireworks Display $208.00 

Investigation Fee (work started without a permit) Double Permit Fee 

Other Plan Reviews or Permits Required by the IFC and/or Municipal 
Code $100.00 Per Hour Review + $100.00 per Hour Inspection 

 
Calculated 

Re-inspection Fees $100.00 

Revision to Plan Previously Submitted - $100.00 per Hour Calculated 

Use of Consultant for Plan Review and Inspection Actual Cost 

Tents/Temporary Membrane (greater than 400 SF) $100.00 

 

Public Works – Engineering and Permitting 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Right-of-Way and Obstruction Permits 
(SMC Chapter 12.20) 

Class 1: Short term maintenance:  $45.00 
Class 2: Temporary Construction:  $65.00, 
              plus review and inspection fees 
Class 3: Fixture and Encroachment:  $65.00; 



 
 

15 
 

               Sidewalk café, add $280.00/hr review fee; 
$15.00 annual renewal fee 

Class 4: Heavy Right-of-Way Use: Fee 
               calculated per SMC Sections 12.20.030.4 & 
               12.20.040.D $65.00, plus review and 
inspection fees 

Public Improvement Civil Plan Review Fee 3% of Estimated Cost of Public Improvements, $250 
minimum 

Public Improvement Inspection Fee 3% of Estimated Cost of Public Improvements, $125 
minimum 

Public or Private Utility Work (Gas, Cable, 
Phone, Electric) 

$150 Application Fee, includes first two hours 
review and first two inspections.  

Fine for Work in Right of Way without 
Permits 

$250.00 plus standard permit fee 

Utility Connection Application Permit Fee 
a. Water & Reclaimed Water Connections 
b. Sewer & Storm Drainage Connections 

 
$170.00 plus applicable Meter and GFC 

$65.00 plus applicable GFC 

ESC, Grading, and Stormwater: 
Single Family 

 
All other Sites 

 
$150.00, Includes Review and Inspection 

$320.00, Includes first four hours review and first 
two inspections.  

Additional/Re-Inspection Fee $75.00 Per Hour 

Additional Plan Review $75.00 Per Hour 

Contracted Consultant for Plan Review or 
Inspection 

Contract Consultant fees 

Special Development Studies:  Traffic Impact 
Reports, Hydrology studies, and similar. 

Contract Consultant fees 

Design Modification Request $150.00 

Traffic Impact Fee $3,967.32 for SFR/varies based on use.  Per SMC 
17.12.  See Attachment B for complete schedule. 

Latecomer Agreement  $280.00 

Right-of-Way vacation $500.00 

 
Stormwater 

Stormwater Monthly Charges 

Class of Service Unit  2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
Single-Family 1 ERU  $17.33 $17.85 $18.39 $18.94 $19.51 

Duplex 2 ERUs  $34.67 $35.71 $36.78 $37.88 $39.02 

All Other Developed Parcels 
Per ERU rounded to the 

nearest tenth  
 $17.33 $17.85 $18.39 $18.94 $19.51 

Note: 1 ERU = 2,900 square feet of impervious surface area. All other developed parcels: minimum of 1 ESU 

 
 



 
 

16 
 

Stormwater GFC 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Class of Service Unit: $474.66 per ERU 
Single-Family 1 ERU 

Duplex 2 ERUs 

All Other Developed 
Parcels 

Per ERU rounded to the nearest tenth  

Note: 1 ERU = 2,900 square feet of impervious surface area.  
 

 

Sewer 

Sewer Service Monthly Charges – Per SMC 14.28 

Class of Service 
2022 

Base Charge 
2022 

Consumption Charge per C.F 
Schedule 1: Single Family Residential & Duplex $52.06 $0.1042 

Schedule 2: Single Family & Duplex without Water Service $133.64 Flat Rate N/A 

Schedule 3: Triplex/Multi-Family/Mobile Home/Trailer Parks 
0 c.f. to 460 c.f. per Unit 
Each Unit over 460 c.f. 

 
$52.06 Per Unit 
$52.06 Per Unit 

 
$0.0000 
$0.1125 

Schedule 4: Commercial 
0 c.f. up to 1,000 c.f. 

1,001 c.f. to 2,000 c.f. 
Over 2,000 c.f. 

 
$63.08 
$94.35 

$130.88 

 
$0.1127 
$0.1127 
$0.1127 

Schedule 5: Hotel/Motel 
0 c.f to 84 c.f. per Unit 
Each Unit over 84 c.f. 

 
$9.53 Per Unit 
$9.53 Per Unit 

 
$0.0000 
$0.1127 

 

Sewer Connection GFC 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4" 1.00 $3,258.00 

1” 2.50 $8,145.00 

1.5” 5.00 $16,290.00 



 
 

17 
 

2” 8.00 $26,064.00 

3” 16.00 $48,870.00 

4” 25.00 $81,495.00 

6” 50.00 $162,900.00 

8” 80.00 $260,640.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of the equivalent charge 
above (e.g. Tiny Homes). 

Sewer Connection GFC (Grandview Heights only) 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4“ 1.00 $1,629.00 

1“ 2.50 $4,072.00 

1.5” 5.00 $8,145.00 

2” 8.00 $13,032.00 

3” 16.00 $24,435.00 

4” 25.00 $40,725.00 

6” 50.00 $81,495.00 

8” 80.00 $130,320.00 

 

Biosolids 

Class A Biosolids Fertilizer, per bag Fee set by City Manager 

Receiving Hauled Biosolids Sludge: 

Sludge up to 1.5% Total Suspended Solids 

Sludge 1.6% to 3% Total Suspended Solids 

Sludge 3.1% to 6% Total Suspended Solids 

 

$0.11 per gallon 

$0.13 per gallon 

$0.15 per gallon 

 
Reclaimed Water Connection 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 



 
 

18 
 

 

Water Meter Charge         Fee 
3/4" Meter $335.06 

1” $393.00 

1.5” $747.68 

2” $1,002.28 

3” $2,461.28 

4” $4,523.04 

6” $5,236.66 

Above 6” $11,047.41 

 
Reclaimed Water Connection GFC 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 
3/4”  1.00 $326.00 

1” 2.50 $815.00 

1.5” 5.00 $1,629.00 

2” 8.00 $2,606.00 

3” 16.00 $4,887.00 

4” 25.00 $8,150.00 

6” 50.00 $16,290.00 

8” 80.00 $26,064.00 

 

Reclaimed Water Service Monthly Charges – Per SMC 16.06.010 

Each account that is served shall pay the following monthly reclaimed water meter charge: 

Meter Size 
2022 

Commercial 

¾- inch $13.62 

1-inch $16.81 

1 ¼ - inch $19.89 



 
 

19 
 

1 ½ -inch $22.94 

2-inch $33.54 

2 ½ -inch N/A 

3-inch $88.43 

4-inch $118.61 

6-inch $195.61 

8-inch $285.95 

10-inch $438.56 

12-inch $682.59 

 

Monthly Reclaimed Water Consumption Charge – Per SMC 16.06.010 

In addition to the monthly reclaimed water meter charge, each service shall pay a consumption 
charge of $0.01915 for each cubic foot of reclaimed water consumed in a month. 
 

Water 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 

Water Connection Meter Charge  

3/4" meter $335.06 

1” meter $393.00 

1.5” meter $747.68 

2” meter $1,002.28 

3” meter $2,461.28 

4” meter $4,523.04 

6” meter $5,236.66 

Above 6” meter $11,047.41 

 

Water Connection GFC 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 2% will be added to the total.** 

 



 
 

20 
 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4” 1.00 $1,260.00 

1” 2.50 $3,150.00 

1.5” 5.00 $6,300.00 

2” 8.00 $10,080.00 

3” 16.00 $18,900.00 

4” 25.00 $31,500.00 

6” 50.00 $63,000.00 

8” 80.00 $100,800.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of the equivalent 
charge above. (e.g., Tiny Homes) 

 

Water Service Monthly Charges – Per SMC 15.28 

Schedule 1: Each account that is served shall pay the following monthly water meter charge: 

Meter Size 
2022 

Single-Family 

2022 

Multifamily 

2022 

Commercial 

2022 

Irrigation 

2022 

Private Fire Line 

¾- inch $15.99 $14.10 $13.62 $42.24 $10.22 

1-inch $20.77 $17.60 $16.81 $64.62 $12.23 

1 ¼ - inch $25.80 $21.05 $19.89 $91.46 $13.98 

1 ½ -inch $30.85 $24.52 $22.94 $118.27 $15.74 

2-inch $46.18 $36.06 $33.54 $186.11 $22.58 

2 ½ -inch N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

3-inch $113.74 $93.45 $88.43 $393.87 $62.60 

4-inch $158.18 $126.49 $118.61 $595.85 $81.84 

6-inch $274.70 $211.35 $195.61 $1,149.76 $129.60 

8-inch $412.47 $311.15 $285.95 $1,812.66 $185.37 

10-inch $620.46 $474.80 $438.56 $2,633.45 $288.94 

12-inch $949.51 $735.75 $682.59 $3,903.20 $455.89 

 

 

 

Monthly Water Service Consumption Charge – Per SMC 15.28 



 
 

21 
 

In addition to the meter charge established in Schedule 1 above, each service shall pay the 
following rate for each cubic foot of water consumed in a month: 

Class of Service 
2022 

Consumption Charge per C.F 
Schedule 2: Single Family Residential 

Each cubic foot up to 600 c.f. 
Each cubic foot in excess of 600 c.f. up to 1,500 c.f. 

Each cubic foot in excess of 1,500 c.f. 

 
$0.0335 
$0.0401 
$0.0498 

Schedule 3: Multifamily  
(including duplex, triplex, mobile home, and trailer parks) 

$0.0389 

Schedule 4: Commercial  
(including government, industrial, hotel/motel) 

$0.0383 

Schedule 5: Irrigation $0.0498 

Schedule 6: Wholesale Rate  
(Johns Prairie area owned by the Port of Shelton) 

$0.0345 

 
Bulk Water and Hydrant Use Permits 

** Technology Fee set at 4% of the applicable permit fee** 

** If payment is made by credit card a processing fee of 3% will be added to the total.** 

 

Annual Hydrant Water Use Permit 
Application Fee  

$72.00 

Or prorated at $6/mo if issued in the 4th quarter 

Hydrant Meter, Gate Valve, and Wrench 
Deposit and Rental Fee 

$750.00 refundable deposit 
$75 per month rental fee 

Hydrant Water Billing and Water Use Charge 

and PWM Hydrant Load/Use Charge 

$45.00 quarterly billing charge, plus 
commercial water consumption charge per 

SMC 15.28.050 

Fine for connection to hydrant without 
permit 

$1,000.00 

Fine for connection to hydrant without meter $500.00 

 

 

Misc. Water Fees and Charges 

Water Turn Off for Non-Payment $100.00 

Water Disconnect: 

Regular Office Hours 

*Emergency After Hours 

*Disconnects after hours are for emergencies only; scheduled 

 

$0.00 

$150.00 



 
 

22 
 

plumbing maintenance or repairs that requires City Staff to 

disconnect water is to occur during City business hours only. 

Water Reconnect: 

Regular Business Hours 

*Emergency After Hours 

*Reconnects after hours are for emergencies only; scheduled 

plumbing maintenance or repairs that requires City Staff to 

reconnect water is to occur during City business hours only. 

 

$0.00 

$150.00 

Fine for unauthorized 
connection/disconnection of water service 

$500.00 

Fine for tampering with water meter, cutting 
lock, etc. 

$150.00 per instance 

 

 

 



Attachment B

Transportation Impact Fee Schedule - 2022

 Land Uses

ITE Land 

Use Code

Unit of 

Measure

Basic Trip 

Rate PM Peak 

Trips/Unit
(1)

New Trips 

Percent

Fee Per 

Unit
(3)

Single Family (Detached) 210 dwelling 1.01 100% $3,967.32 

Multifamily – Apartment 220 dwelling 0.62 100% $2,435.38 

Low-Rise Apartment (1-2 Floors) 221
occupied 

dwelling 0.58 100% $2,278.26 

Multifamily – Condominium/Townhouse 230 dwelling 0.52 100% $2,042.58 

Mobile Home Park 240 dwelling 0.59 100% $2,317.54 

Senior Adult Housing – Detached 251 dwelling 0.26 100% $1,021.29 

Senior Adult Housing – Attached 252
occupied 

dwelling 0.11 100% $432.08 

Congregate Care 253 dwelling 0.17 100% $667.77 

Assisted Living 254 bed 0.22 100% $864.17 

Recreational Homes 260 dwelling 0.26 100% $1,021.29 

Light Industrial 110 1,000 sf GFA 0.98 100% $3.85 

Industrial Park 130 1,000 sf GFA 0.86 100% $3.38 

Warehousing 150 1,000 sf GFA 0.47 100% $1.85 

Mini-Warehouse 151 1,000 sf GFA 0.26 100% $1.02 

Hotel 310 room 0.59 100% $2,317.54 

Motel 320 room 0.47 100% $1,846.18 

Walk-in Bank (4a) 911 1,000 sf GFA 33.15 53% $69.02 

Drive-In Bank 912 1,000 sf GFA 45.74 60% $107.79 

Day Care Center 565 1,000 sf GFA 13.18 100% $51.77 

Quick Lubrication Vehicle Shop (4b) 941
servicing 

position 5.19 57% $11,627.00 

Automobile Care Center (4b) 942 1,000 sf GFA 3.38 57% $7.58 

Gasoline/Service Station 944 VFP 13.86 58% $31,581.44 

Service Station/  Minimart 945 VFP 13.38 44% $23,136.16 

Service Station/ Minimart/Carwash (4c) 946 VFP 13.33 44% $23,057.59 

Carwash (4a) 947 stall 5.54 53% $11,548.44 

Movie Theater 444 seat 0.07 100% $274.96 

Health/Fitness Club 492 1,000 sf GFA 4.05 100% $15.91 

Elementary School (5) 520 1,000 sf GFA n/a 100% n/a

Middle/Junior High School 522 1,000 sf GFA 1.19 100% $4.67 

High School 530 1,000 sf GFA 0.97 100% $3.81 

Community/Junior College 540 Student 0.12 100% $471.36 

College/University 550 Student 0.21 100% $824.89 

Church 560 1,000 sf GFA 0.66 100% $2.59 

Hospital 610 1,000 sf GFA 1.18 100% $4.64 

Nursing Home 620 1,000 sf GFA 0.42 100% $1.65 

Quality Restaurant 931 1,000 sf GFA 7.49 80% $23.53 

High-Turnover (Sit-down) Restaurant 932 1,000 sf GFA 10.92 57% $24.43 

Fast Food Restaurant w/o Drive-thru 933 1,000 sf GFA 26.15 50% $51.38 

Fast Food Restaurant with Drive-thru 934 1,000 sf GFA 34.64 50% $68.03 

Tavern/Drinking Place 936 1,000 sf GFA 11.34 65% $28.95 

Commercial-Restaurant

5.99

6.22

13.08

17.32

7.37

0.97

0.12

0.21

0.66

1.18

0.42

2.94

0.07

4.05

Commercial-Institutional

n/a

1.19

13.18

2.96

1.93

8.04

5.89

5.87

0.26

Commercial-Services

0.59

0.47

17.57

27.44

0.22

0.26

Industrial

0.98

0.86

0.47

0.58

0.52

0.59

0.26

0.11

0.17

New Trip 

Rate
(2)

Cost per New Trip Generated:                                                                                 $3,928.04 

Residential

1.01

0.62

bkilts
Text Box

bkilts
Image



 Land Uses

ITE Land 

Use Code

Unit of 

Measure

Basic Trip 

Rate PM Peak 

Trips/Unit
(1)

New Trips 

Percent

Fee Per 

Unit
(3)

New Trip 

Rate
(2)

General Office Building 710 1,000 sf GFA 1.49 100% $5.85 

Medical-Dental Office/Clinic 720 1,000 sf GFA 3.72 100% $14.61 

Retail Shopping Center

up to 49,999 sf 820 1,000 sf GLA 9.98 50% $19.60 

50,000-99,999 sf 820 1,000 sf GLA 6.9 55% $14.93 

100,000-199,999 sf 820 1,000 sf GLA 5.45 60% $12.84 

200,000-299,999 sf 820 1,000 sf GLA 4.58 65% $11.71 

300,000-399,999 sf 820 1,000 sf GLA 4.09 70% $11.23 

400,000 sf and over 820 1,000 sf GLA 3.75 75% $11.04 

Automobile Parts Sales 843 1,000 sf GFA 5.98 57% $13.39 

Car Sales – New/Used (4d) 841 1,000 sf GFA 2.64 75% $7.78 

Convenience Market 851 1,000 sf GFA 52.41 39% $80.29 

Discount Club (4e) 861 1,000 sf GFA 4.24 77% $12.81 

Electronic Superstore 863 1,000 sf GFA 4.5 60% $10.61 

Toy Superstore (4f) 864 1,000 sf GFA 4.99 66% $12.92 

Furniture Store 890 1,000 sf GFA 0.46 47% $0.86 

Hardware/Paint Store 816 1,000 sf GFA 4.84 74% $14.06 

Home Improvement Superstore 862 1,000 sf GFA 2.45 52% $4.99 

Nursery/Garden Center (4d) 817 1,000 sf GFA 3.8 75% $11.19 

Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive-thru 880 1,000 sf GFA 8.42 47% $15.56 

Pharmacy/Drugstore w/Drive-thru 881 1,000 sf GFA 8.62 51% $17.28 

Supermarket 850 1,000 sf GFA 10.45 64% $26.28 

Tire Store 848 1,000 sf GFA 4.15 72% $11.74 

Tire Superstore (4g) 849 1,000 sf GFA 2.11 72% $5.97 

Video Rental Store (4a) 896 1,000 sf GFA 13.6 53% $28.32 

Free-Standing Discount Superstore 813 1,000 sf GFA 3.87 72% $10.96 

Free-Standing Discount Store 815 1,000 sf GFA 5.06 83% $16.50 

2.99

1.52

7.21

2.79

4.20

3.58

1.27

2.85

3.96

4.40

6.69

1.98

20.44

3.26

2.70

3.29

0.22

3.80

3.27

2.98

2.86

2.81

3.41

Commercial-Office

1.49

3.72

Commercial-Retail 

4.99

Source:  ITE "Trip Generation 7th Edition"

GFA = Gross Floor Area
GLA = Gross Leasable Area
VFP = Vehicle Fuling Position

(1) The New Trip Percentage reduces the average trip rate based on average pass-by trip percentages published in the ITE Trip Generation Handbook (2nd Edition, 2004)

(2) For uses with the unit of measure in "1000 sf GFA" or "1000 sf GLA" the trip rate is given as trips per 1000 square feet

(3) For uses with the unit of measure in "1000 sf GFA" or "1000 sf GLA" the impact fee is given as dollars per square foot

(4) No pass-by rate are available.  Pass-by rates were estimated from other similar uses:
Code Land Use

4a        Drive-in Bank (912)
4b        Auto PArts Sales (843)
4c        Gasoline/Service Station w/Convience MArket (945)
4d        No data available.  25% estimated pass-by
4e        Discount Supermarket (854)
4f        Electronic Superstore (863)
4g        Tire Store (848)

(5) No average PM peak hour trip rate available,  Need to perform own PM peak hour traffic count for the identified land use to calculate impact fee.

The Transportation Impact fee for uses located within the downtown core shall be subject to a reduced trip factor resulting in a fifteen (15) percent fee reduction. The downcore core 
is interpreted in this Ordinance as the properties west of Front Street, south of Cedar Street, east of 7th Street, with the southern limit extending to include properties with frontage 
on Cota Street between 7th and Front Street.

In-fill development, herein defined as residential development fully within parcels created prior to 1938, either a single lot or multiple lots, utilizing the lot configuration of the original 
subdivision, a subsequent boundary line adjustment or lot consolidation, but excluding development resulting from a replat of the subject lots, and which would require construction 
of full street improvements along the project frontage, including at a minimum a full width paved roadway section and curb, is exempt from transportation impact fees.



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date:  06/10/2022              
Brief Date:     06/21/2022 
Action Date:  07/05/2022 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By:  Teri Schnitzer 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
   2022 Supplemental Budget  

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
   Ordinance No. 1989-0522  
   Exhibit A 
   Exhibit B 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 

 
 

 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
06/10/22 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
06/10/22 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
06/10/22 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
06/10/22 

     

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The City Council passed Ordinance No. 1979-1021, adopting the City’s 2022 budget on November 16th, 
2021.  The City Council, through Ordinance, sets the expenditure authority for each fund of the City.  
Budget authority and the number of City FTE’s (Full Time Equivalents) can only be increased from their 
adopted levels by the approval of a supplemental budget Ordinance. 
 
This supplemental Ordinance will increase the expenditure authority of the General, Street, Capital 
Resource-General, Capital Improvement, Water, Sewer, Storm Drainage, Water Capital, Sewer Capital, 
Storm Drainage Capital, and Equipment Rental Funds, which was not anticipated upon adoption of the 
budget. The supplemental requests are included in detail in Exhibit A and B.   

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move that we approve Ordinance No. 1989-0522 as presented”. 
 

 



  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1989-0522 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE ANNUAL BUDGET 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council adopted the 2022 budget pursuant to Ordinance No. 1979-1021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is prohibited from over expending its appropriated budget as set forth in Ordinance No. 

1979-1021 adopted budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, certain revisions to the 2022 budget are now necessary and the City Council finds that the 

proposed adjustments to the 2022 Adopted Budget are justified; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington: 

 

 Section 1.  

 

The adjustments as provided in this Ordinance to amend the 2022 Annual Budget of the City of Shelton, 

Washington, are hereby adopted. In summary form, the appropriation adjustments for each separate fund 

and the aggregate totals for all such funds combined are presented in the table below.  Exhibit A and B, 

attached to this Ordinance, provides additional information on the adjustments. 

 

 

Fund

2022

Adopted

Budget

2022

Adjustment

2022

Revised

Budget

General Fund 15,685,430$ 770,644$              16,456,074$      

Street Fund 1,846,760      149,450                 1,996,210           

Capital Resource Funds

    Real Estate Excise Tax -1 46,830            46,830                 

    Real Estate Excise Tax -2 -                   -                            

    Transportation Benefit District 385,390          385,390              

    Traffic Impact Fees 414,100          414,100              

    General Resources 2,139,500      534,830                 2,674,330           

Tourism Fund 65,758            65,758                 

Bond Fund 177,300          177,300              

Capital Improvement Fund 2,733,800      402,553                 3,136,353           

Water Fund 2,620,760      199,194                 2,819,954           

Sewer Fund 6,234,700      215,448                 6,450,148           

Solid Waste Fund 1,286,540      1,286,540           

Storm Drainage Fund 1,395,100      86,735                   1,481,835           

Water Capital Fund 2,564,500      172,844                 2,737,344           

Sewer Capital Fund 2,475,000      128,928                 2,603,928           

Storm Drainage Capital Fund 245,000          75,035                   320,035              

Payroll Benefits Fund 201,000          201,000              

Equipment Rental Fund 865,070          27,380                   892,450              

Firefighters's Pension Fund 102,100          102,100              

Library Endowment Fund -                   

Total Expenditures 41,484,638$ 2,763,041$           44,247,679$      



  

 

 

Section 2. 

 

The Legislature having given authority over the budget to the City Council, this shall take effect five days after 

its approval and publication as required by law. 

 

INTRODUCED the 21st day of June 2022. 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular open public meeting 

held the 5th day of July 2022. 

 

 

       

Passed this ______ day of _________________ 2022. 

 

 

 

  _____________________ 

  Eric Onisko, Mayor 

  

  AUTHENTICATED:  

 

  _____________________ 

Donna Nault, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Exhibit A 

City of Shelton 

Ordinance No. 1989-0522 

 

 

General Fund    ____                                                                                         $770,644 

This supplemental will increase the General Fund budget $770,644 for the following expenses : $112,130 for 

police retention incentives, position reclassifications, labor union contract and benefit change increases as well 

as director position increases; $40,000 transfer to Capital Improvement Fund for property exchange with the US 

Postal Service; $50,000 additional for the Civic Center Parking Lot project; $29,800 transfer to street fund for 

Downtown Visioning - street tree analysis; $25,000 for contract labor negotiation professional service expenses; 

$20,000 EMS levy ballot expense; $120,621 for EnerGov Program implementation and yearly fees; $132,700 

Therapeutic Court Grant expenses; $100,000 transfer to street operations for 2021 chip seal program expenses 

that were paid in 2022; $27,840 for FCS Group to perform Equipment Rental and Replacement study (budgeted 

in 2021, but work was not performed until 2022); $112,553 transfer to Capital Improvement fund for Western 

Gateway project additional expenses. 
 
Street Fund                                                                                 _                                                            $149,450 

Increasing the Street Fund for the following:  $19,650 for personnel increase costs due to labor contract 

settlement; $29,800 for Downtown Visioning – street tree analysis; $100,000 for 2021 chip seal expenses paid 

out of 2022 budget.  
 
Capital Resource - General Fund  ____                                                                            $534,830 

Increasing the Capital Resource – General Fund for the following:  $89,050 for Utility bill assistance to utility 

residential customers using Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds; $445,780 for Shelton Veteran’s 

Village CHIP grant to flow through the City.   
 
Capital Improvement Fund ____                                                                                                          $402,553 

Increasing the Capital Improvement Fund for the following: $40,000 expense for US Postal Service park 

exchange; $50,000 additional expense for Civic Center Parking Lot project; $200,000 for police fencing 

(reimbursed by Department of Commerce Direct Appropriation funds); $112,553 additional Western Gateway 

expenses.  
 
Water Operations Fund                                                                    _                                                   $199,194 

Increasing the Water Operations Fund for the following: $26,350 for personnel increase costs due to labor 

contract settlement; $172,844 transfer to Water Capital Fund for the Western Gateway project.   
 
Sewer Operations Fund                                                                                                               $215,448 

Increasing the Sewer Operations Fund for the following:  $86,520 for personnel increase costs due to labor 

contract settlement; $128,928 transfer to the Sewer Capital Fund for land purchase for future site of the Northerly 

Diversion Lift Station. 
 
Storm Operations Fund                                                                                                                             $86,735  

Increasing the storm fund for the following:  $11,700 for personnel increase costs due to labor contract 

settlement; $75,035 transfer to storm capital fund for additional Western Gateway project expenses. 
 
Water Capital Fund                                                                                               ___        ___ $172,844  

Increasing the Water Capital Fund $172,844 for additional Western Gateway project expenses. 
 
Sewer Capital Fund                             $128,928 

Increasing the Sewer Capital Fund for the following: 128,928 for land purchase for future site of the Northerly 

Diversion Lift Station and re-appropriating unspent 2021 budget of $281,072 for Slack Tide Tank Project to the 

land purchase totaling $410,000. 
 
Storm Capital Fund                                                                                                                                  $75,035 

Increasing the storm capital fund by $75,035 for additional Western Gateway project expenses.  
 
Equipment Maintenance and Rental Fund  (EM&R)                                                                         $27,380 

Increasing the EM&R fund $27,840 for the FCS Group contract to create an Equipment Maintenance, Rental 

and Replacement Fund model that was originally approved in 2021 that continued into 2022 and a small 

reduction of $460 in salary and benefits due to labor contract settlement. 



Exhibit B

City of Shelton 

Ordinance No. 1989-0522

Notes for 2022 Budget Supplemental Gen Fund Street

 Capital 

Resources

General 

 Capital

Improv

Fund Water Sewer Storm

 Water

Capital 

 Sewer

Capital 

 Storm

Capital EM&R

Police retention over 3 years  $3k, $4k, $7k (pay Dec 10) 54,000        

Police - reclassify Sergeant to Detective-Sergeant 5,580          

Public Works re-org (7-1-22) 2,670       7,510       2,510     

Director positions incr 1 pay grade (7-1-22) 17,750        

labor contracts higher than 4% that was budgeted 68,000        16,980     14,430     67,090     9,190     (460)       

Public Works Tech - Adj to grade 19 3,910       3,910       

Employees changing insurance plans for 2022 (33,200)       8,010       8,010       

Subtotal Wages & Benefits 255,890$    112,130$    19,650$   26,350$   86,520$   11,700$ (460)$     

Post Office Park 40,000        40,000     

Civic Center Parking Lot 50,000        50,000     

Downtown Visioning (Street Tree Analysis) 29,800        29,800     

Summit Law (union contract negotiations) 25,000        

EMS Levy - EMS Election costs 20,000        

Energov program 120,621      

Courts: Therapeutic Court - grant funded 132,700      

Street Operations* 100,000      100,000   

FCS Group - Equip Rental & Replacement program study** 27,840        27,840   

Police Fencing - Direct Appropriation 200,000   

Utility Bill assistance (using ARPA funding) 89,050      

Western Gateway (transfer out to capital funds) 112,553      112,553   172,844   75,035   172,844   75,035   

Sewer Land Purchase-future site of the Northerly Diversion Lift Station 128,928   410,000   

Reappropriate Slack Tide Tank (2021 Budget) to property purchase (281,072)  

Shelton Veteran's Village CHIP grant flow through City 445,780    

Grand Totals 2,763,041$ 770,644$    149,450$ 534,830$  402,553$ 199,194$ 215,448$ 86,735$ 172,844$ 128,928$ 75,035$ 27,380$ 

*2021 Chip seal maintenance program was paid in 2022

**FCS Group contract $59,460 less 3,780 paid in 2021 = $55,680


	1 Agenda_20220705
	2 2022 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20220705
	4 Draft Minutes_20220524_Study Session
	5 Energov
	6 NeoGov Presentation
	7 New Website - Council Presentation
	8 Briefing_Res 1237-0522 6 Yr TIP
	9 Resolution No 1237-0522_6-Year TIP
	10 Resolution No 1237-0522_6 Year TIP 2023-2028
	11 Informational City Map for Council
	12 2022 TIP Public Hearing Notice
	13 TIP Definition of Information Codes
	14 Briefing_Res 1239-0522_TMG Sole Source
	15 Resolution 1239-0522 TMG Sole Source
	17 Agenda Briefing_Fee Schedule
	18 Resolution 1238-0522
	19 Exhibit A - 2022 Fee Schedule
	20 Exhibit B - Traffic Impact Fee (TIF) Schedule
	21 Briefing  2022 Supplemental Budget
	22 Ordinance 1989-0522 Budget Supplemental w Exhibit A
	23 Exhibit B - 2022 Supplemental Detail

